

# The Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Disabilities

Employee Handbook

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .



# Welcome to

# the Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Disabilities!

A period of the gateway to recovery for Georgia citizens faced with behavioral health challenges, developmental disabilities, and addictive diseases. Employees of the Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Disabilities (DBHDD) perform a variety of services for Georgia citizens. Regardless of what position you hold, each employee's unique skills and talents are essential to accomplishing the mission of the Department, to provide and promote local accessibility and choice of services and programs for individuals, families, and communities. We work to make sure that every person who participates in our services leads a satisfying, independent life with dignity and respect. By working together, we provide the care that guides those we serve toward recovery. We are glad you've joined us. This handbook will provide you with some DBHDD best practices and expectations for achieving our mission.

#### INTRODUCTION

This EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK has been prepared to provide general guidance to you about some of the privileges you have as an employee and the duties and responsibilities that we all share. THIS HANDBOOK IS NOT INTENDED TO BE, NOR IS IT TO BE CONSIDERED, A CONTRACT OF EMPLOYMENT.

Information provided is current as of March 2012. Changes in Federal laws, State laws, rules, or policies will take precedence over information provided in this HANDBOOK. The Department has the right to change information in this HANDBOOK at any time or for any reason without prior notice.

You are encouraged to read this HANDBOOK and keep it for easy reference. Questions should be directed to your supervisor, or the Human Resources (HR) Department at your location.

Although information in this HANDBOOK should address many of your questions, you should refer to DBHDD Human Resources Policies for detailed policies and procedures regarding specific issues. DBHDD policies are available on the Internet through the PolicyStat policy management system.

https://gadbhdd.policystat.com/

If you need this HANDBOOK in alternative format, please contact the human resources office at your location.

\*\*\*\*\*\*\*

# **Table of Contents**

.

| I. EMPLOYMENT IN STATE GOVERNMENT 6                   | 5 |
|---|---|
| CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES                                  | 5 |
| UNCLASSIFIED EMPLOYEES                                | 5 |
| LICENSE, CERTIFICATE, REGISTRATION OR INSURANCE       | 5 |
| SELECTIVE SERVICE REGISTRATION                        |   |
| EMPLOYMENT ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION                   | 7 |
| MEDICAL AND PHYSICAL EXAMINATION PROGRAM7             |   |
| CRIMINAL HISTORY RECORD INFORMATION7                  | 7 |
| INFORMATION DISCLOSURE                                |   |
| ORIENTATION   |   |
| PROMOTION   |   |
| TRANSFER  |   |
| EMPLOYMENT OF RELATIVES                               |   |
| II. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS                                 | ) |
| COMPENSATION  | ) |
| PAY PERIODS   |   |
| PAYROLL DEDUCTIONS                                    |   |
| DIRECT DEPOSIT/DEBIT CARD                             |   |
| HOLIDAYS  |   |
| ANNUAL AND SICK LEAVE                                 |   |
| PERSONAL LEAVE  |   |
| LEAVE OF ABSENCE WITHOUT PAY                          |   |
| FAMILY AND MEDICAL LEAVE                              |   |
| LEAVE DONATION  |   |
| COURT LEAVE   |   |
| MILITARY LEAVE  |   |
| DISASTER VOLUNTEER LEAVE                              |   |
| ORGAN DONATION LEAVE                                  |   |
| BONE MARROW DONATION LEAVE                            |   |
| BLOOD DONATION LEAVE                                  |   |
| VOTING TIME   |   |
| RETIREMENT BENEFITS                                   |   |
|   |   |
| III. OTHER AVAILABLE BENEFITS                         |   |
| FLEXIBLE BENEFITS PROGRAM15                           |   |
| PEACH STATE RESERVES15                                | 5 |
| COBRA16   |   |
| GEORGIA WORKAWAY PROGRAM16                            | 5 |
| IV. EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITIES                         | 5 |
| Personal Appearance During Work Hours17               | 7 |
| USE OF STATE PROPERTY17                               | 7 |
| Use of Privileged or Confidential Information18       | 3 |
| ACTIVITIES AND RELATIONSHIPS WITH NON-DBHDD EMPLOYEES |   |
| ARRESTS AND CONVICTIONS                               | ) |
| V. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT PROCESS                     | ) |
| Performance Management Plans19                        | ) |
| INTERIM REVIEWS                                       |   |
| Performance Management Evaluations                    |   |
| VI. HOURS OF WORK & CLOSURES                          | ) |

H......

| FAIR LABOR STANDARDS ACT (FLSA)                                 | 20       |
|---|----------|
| OVERTIME  | 20       |
| OFFICIAL WORK HOURS AND WORK SCHEDULES                          |          |
| OFFICE CLOSURES   | 21       |
| VII. SAFETY & WORK-RELATED INJURY, ILLNESS OR EXPOSURE TO OCCU. | PATIONAL |
| DISEASES  |          |
| OBSERVING SAFETY REGULATIONS                                    | 22       |
| WORKERS' COMPENSATION.  |          |
| Special Injury  |          |
| VIII. OUTSIDE ACTIVITIES  | 23       |
| OTHER EMPLOYMENT  | 23       |
| POLITICAL ACTIVITY  |          |
|   |          |
| IX. ALCOHOL AND DRUG AND WORKPLACE VIOLENCE POLICIES            | 24       |
| DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE   |          |
| ALCOHOL-FREE WORKPLACE  |          |
| PREVENTING AND REPORTING WORKPLACE VIOLENCE                     | 25       |
| X. CONFLICT RESOLUTION  | 25       |
| THIRD PARTY INVOLVEMENT IN EMPLOYMENT MATTERS                   | 25       |
| GRIEVANCE PROCEDURES  | 26       |
| UNLAWFUL DISCRIMINATION COMPLAINT PROCEDURE                     |          |
| REVIEW OF WRITTEN REPRIMANDS                                    | 26       |
| XI. DISCIPLINARY ACTION   | 27       |
| XII. ENDING EMPLOYMENT  | 27       |
| RESIGNATION   | 27       |
| RETIREMENT  |          |
| STAFF REDUCTION   |          |
| UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION                                       | 28       |
| XIII. GENERAL INFORMATION                                       | 28       |
| IDENTIFICATION BADGES   |          |
| Smoking Policy  |          |
| TRAVEL  |          |
| CREDIT UNIONS   |          |
| EMPLOYEES' SUGGESTION AND AWARDS PROGRAM                        |          |
| CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS PROGRAM                                | 29       |
| EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM                                   | 35       |
| EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM                                   |          |
| ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES POLICIES                     |          |

H......

.

# I. EMPLOYMENT IN STATE GOVERNMENT

The Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Disabilities (DBHDD) is an equal opportunity employer, and does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, sex, national origin, disability, genetic information, age, or religious or political opinions, or affiliations. All forms of harassment prohibited by law, including sexual harassment, will not be tolerated by the Department.

As a DBHDD employee, your employment status will either be classified or unclassified.

#### **Classified Employees**

Employees who were hired in classified positions **before** July 1, 1996 will continue in the classified service unless they accept unclassified positions. Employees are subject to the Rules of the State Personnel Board. Classified employees may appeal some employment actions to the State Personnel Board.

#### Unclassified Employees

Employees who were hired **on or after** July 1, 1996 will be in the unclassified service. Employees hired into the unclassified service prior to that date remain unclassified. Georgia is an "employment-at-will" State and, as such, employees in the unclassified service serve at the discretion of the Department. Unclassified employees cannot appeal employment actions to the State Personnel Board.

#### License, Certificate, Registration or Insurance

All employees in positions which require a license (including a driver's license), certificate, or registration must maintain the appropriate valid documents. Failure to maintain such documents without justifiable cause and notification to Department officials may result in separation from employment. Maintenance of any required license is the responsibility of the employee.

Employees who are required to use personal vehicles to perform assigned duties are also responsible for ensuring that their vehicles are properly insured against loss. Employees are prohibited from transporting clients, patients, customers, or other employees in uninsured personal vehicles while on duty.

#### Selective Service Registration

The Military Selective Service Act requires all selected male applicants between the ages of 18 and 26 to present proof of having registered with the Selective Service System or to present proof of being exempt from registration. If proof is not provided by specified deadlines, the offer of employment will be withdrawn from applicants or employees will be separated.

#### **Employment Eligibility Verification**

As mandated by the Immigration Reform and Control Act, the Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Disabilities is required to verify the identity and employment eligibility of new employees. In order to establish employment eligibility, all new employees must complete an I-9 form. It is a violation of Federal law to knowingly hire or recruit an alien unauthorized to work in the United States or, any individual without complying with the identity and employment eligibility verification requirements including completion of the eVerify process.

For more information, please refer to *DBHDD Human Resources Policy* 22-503: *Verifying Identity and Employment Eligibility at <u>https://gadbhdd.policystat.com/</u>* 

#### Medical and Physical Examination Program

All selected applicants must be certified for medical and physical fitness for their positions. Some job categories require applicants to obtain a medical and physical examination after receiving a job offer. This ensures that employees are physically capable of carrying out the duties of the job. The program also protects the State from potential liability under Workers' Compensation laws for conditions arising after employment that are caused in whole or part by pre-existing physical conditions. The offer of employment is contingent upon satisfactory completion of the certification.

#### **Criminal History Record Information**

The Department will make all reasonable efforts to provide a safe environment for clients, patients, customers, and staff. Based on this objective, a review of criminal history record information will be completed on all applicants selected for employment within DBHDD. Managers may also require a review of criminal history record information on employees who move to other positions within DBHDD, based on responsibilities, duties, security, and safety.

#### Information Disclosure

All applicants/employees are to provide factually accurate information on **EVERY** *Application for Employment, State Security Questionnaire/Loyalty Oath* Form and on all other documents. Georgia Law prohibits any DBHDD employee who does not sign a *State Security Questionnaire/Loyalty Oath* Form from receiving a paycheck.

Applicants/employees are **required** to disclose criminal history information on *Applications for Employment* and *State Security Questionnaire/Loyalty Oath* Forms each time these documents are completed.

Falsification or misrepresentation of criminal history is **prohibited** and **may** result in an offer of employment being withdrawn, or separation.

**Material** falsification or misrepresentation of any information **shall** result in an offer of employment being withdrawn, or separation.

# NOTE: "Material" refers to information that directly influences and/or impacts the hiring decision based on records, credentials, and/or qualifications.

#### Orientation

All employees of the Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Disabilities are to receive appropriate employee orientation. Employee orientation is intended to introduce new employees to the organization; provide a systematic approach for sharing general information, philosophy, policies, and procedures that enable a smooth integration into the workforce; and to communicate standards and expectations of employment to new employees. For more information, please contact the human resources office at your location.

#### Promotion

It is the policy of DBHDD to provide promotional opportunities for current employees. A promotion is the advancement of an employee from a job on a lower pay grade to a job on a higher pay grade which generally results in an increase in pay. Employees must meet the minimum and any special qualifications established for the position in order to be eligible for a promotion to that position.

For additional information, please contact a human resources representative, or refer to DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-1101: Promotions.

Employees are encouraged to visit <u>www.dbhddjobs.com</u> for a current listing of job opportunities.

#### Transfer

A transfer is the movement between positions within the same job, or vement from a position in one job to a position in a different job on the same pay grade. Employees must meet the minimum qualifications for the job and any special qualifications for the position.

For additional information, please contact your human resources representative, or refer to DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-1103: Transfer of Employees.

#### Employment of Relatives

The Department prohibits or limits the employment or change in employment status of relatives or others with a pre-employment relationship when necessary or appropriate. Authorized officials have the responsibility to make appropriate decisions when relatives of current employees are being considered for employment, or when current employees may be working with relatives in violation of the Department's policy. Relatives will not be employed or placed in positions or situations in which a superior-subordinate relationship will exist between the relatives in circumstances including, but not limited to the following:

- when the relatives work for the same DBHDD organizational unit at the same location, or
- when the relatives will be employed within a single chain of command, or there are fewer than two levels of management separating the relatives.

Relatives will not be employed or placed in circumstances in which fiscal, or client related checks and balances are a part of the assigned duties and responsibilities of the positions involved.

Relatives will not be employed in a working relationship in which the nature of the responsibilities may contribute to personal or financial gain, fraud, collusion, and other abuses of the positions or conflict of interest. Relatives should not be placed in direct co-worker relationship within the same organizational unit.

For further information on employment of relatives, including the definition of "relatives", please refer to *DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-1204: Employment Status of Relatives.* 

## II. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

#### Compensation

DBHDD offers its employees a wide range of tangible and intangible employee benefits that form a part of a total compensation package. In addition to monetary compensation, there are many other types of indirect compensation and non-monetary benefits. Examples include, but are not limited to, health insurance, retirement benefits, leave and holidays, learning opportunities, the potential for flexible scheduling when job demands allow, and the intangible rewards of providing services that can make a difference in the lives of those who participate in our services.

#### **Pay Periods**

Salary payments are made on a semi-monthly pay period basis. The first pay period is from the first through the fifteenth of the month, and the second pay period is from the sixteenth through the last day of the month. Paydays are generally the 15<sup>th</sup> and the last day of the pay period unless those dates fall on a weekend or holiday, in which case payday is the last workday of the pay period.

#### **Payroll Deductions**

There are a number of payroll deductions which are applicable to most employees, such as Federal and State income taxes, Social Security and Medicare taxes, and retirement. Voluntary deductions such as health insurance, other insurance options, credit unions, and charitable contributions, may also be authorized.

#### **Direct Deposit/Debit Card**

DBHDD encourages employees to use direct payroll deposit, if it is available. If not, employees are required to sign up for the DBHDD Debit Card which electronically transfers net pay onto a debit card.

For additional information, please contact your human resources office.

#### Holidays

Georgia law provides for 12 holidays each year. The Governor declares the actual days on which holidays will be observed. Each calendar year's State Holidays are posted on the Team Georgia website: <u>http://team.georgia.gov</u>.

Holidays cannot be observed prior to the dates declared by the Governor. Two (2) State holidays that occur during the General Assembly (marked by an \* on the holiday list) are observed later in the calendar year. Employees who leave State government after the actual dates of these holidays, but prior to the dates they are observed, as declared by the Governor, are not eligible to be paid for the holidays.

Employees required to work on a holiday will be allowed equivalent time off (8 hours for full-time employees and pro-rata time off for part-time employees). Employees unable to take equivalent time off within 120 days will be paid for the holiday in accordance with DBHDD policy.

To be eligible for the holiday, employees must be in pay status for the full workday either before or after the holiday.

The following holidays are observed:

- New Year's Day
- Robert E. Lee's Birthday\*
- Martin Luther King, Jr.'s Birthday
- George Washington's Birthday\*
- Confederate Memorial Day
- National Memorial Day
- Independence Day
- Labor Day
- Columbus Day
- Veterans' Day
- Thanksgiving Day
- Christmas Day

For more information, please refer to *DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-1004: Observance of Holidays.* 

#### Annual and Sick Leave

Eligible employees accrue annual and sick leave on a semi-monthly basis **at the end of each pay period**. Accrued leave will be available for use by employees at the beginning of the pay period after it is earned. Full-time employees must be in pay status for at least 40 hours during a pay period to accrue leave. This minimum period is pro-rated for part-time employees by the percentage of time worked.

Eligible full-time employees earn annual leave depending on the length of continuous service at the following rates:

| 5 hours per pay period | 0-60 months (inclusive) – semi-monthly                            |
|------------------------|---|
| 6 hours per pay period | 601/2 - 120 months (inclusive) - semi-monthly                     |
| 7 hours per pay period | 120 <sup>1</sup> / <sub>2</sub> months and greater – semi-monthly |

Accrual at the appropriate higher rate begins on the first day of the pay period after the employee completes the required months of continuous service.

Eligible part-time employees accrue annual leave at these rates prorated by the percentage of time worked.

Employees may accumulate up to 360 hours of annual leave. Any annual leave over 360 hours is placed in a forfeited status, but may be restored in cases of illness or disability. In some cases, forfeited annual leave may be counted toward retirement.

Employees may use annual leave for vacations or any other time needed to attend to personal business. Employees must request to use accrued annual leave and receive prior approval from their supervisor, unless an emergency situation exists.

Eligible full-time employees accrue five (5) hours of sick leave **at the end of each pay period.** The amount of sick leave earned is also prorated for eligible part-time employees by the percentage of time worked.

Sick leave may be accumulated up to a total of 720 hours. Any sick leave over 720 hours is placed in a forfeited status, but may be restored in case of illness or disability. In some cases, forfeited sick leave and unused sick leave may be counted toward retirement.

Upon receiving approval, an employee may use accrued sick leave for the following:

- absence due to personal illness or disability;
- absence needed because of exposure to contagious disease when attendance on duty would endanger the health of others;
- absence for dental or medical care; and

 absence due to dental or medical care, illness, accident, or death in the immediate family which requires the employee's presence.

Immediate family" means the employee's spouse, child, parent, brother, and sister. Immediate family also includes any other person who resides in the employee's household and is recognized **by law** as a dependent of the employee.

For further information on annual and sick leave, please refer to DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-1006: Annual, Sick and Personal Leave.

#### Personal Leave

Employees eligible for leave benefits who have accumulated more than 120 hours of sick leave as of November 30 of any year may convert up to 24 hours of the accumulation in excess of the 120 hours to personal leave. This conversion must be made no later than December 31 of that year for use in the following year.

For detailed information on personal leave, please refer to DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-1006: Annual, Sick and Personal Leave.

#### Leave Of Absence Without Pay

Authorized officials may grant leaves of absence without pay (LWOP) when deemed appropriate. Leaves of absence without pay are generally approved only for medical reasons when employees are reasonably expected to be able to return to work. Leaves of absence without pay should be approved only for short periods of time, unless there are extraordinary circumstances that support an extended period of time.

For more information, please contact your human resources or personnel representative, or refer to DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-1007: Leave of Absence Without Pay.

#### Family and Medical Leave

Federal law provides job-protected family and medical leave without pay from work for certain family and medical reasons. DBHDD permits employees to use available annual, sick, and/or personal leave, if appropriate, while on family and medical leave in order to remain in pay status. While on family and medical leave, eligible employees who have health insurance through the State Health Benefit Plan are entitled to maintain this health insurance coverage.

To be eligible for family and medical leave, employees must have been employed with Georgia State government for a minimum of 12 months, and have been **present at work** for a minimum of 1,250 hours during the 12 months immediately before the beginning of family and medical leave. Up to 12 work weeks of family and medical leave is available on a rolling year basis. Any accrued leave must be used concurrent with Family and Medical Leave. Any period of family and medical leave not covered by accrued leave will be without pay.

For detailed information, please contact your supervisor or human resources office, or refer to DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-1005: Family and Medical Leave.

#### Leave Donation

Eligible DBHDD employees (recipients) may under certain circumstances request leave donations from other DBHDD employees (donors). Donors may donate accrued annual, sick, or personal leave directly to recipients. All donated leave is credited to recipients' **sick** leave balances. Leave donations can only be used for sick leave related reasons as described in *DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-1006*.

Recipients may be eligible to receive donated leave after using all accrued and forfeited leave, all available compensatory time, and after being on authorized leave without pay for at least 80 consecutive hours.

Please contact your supervisor or human resources office, or refer to *DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-1010: Leave Donation*, for additional information and restrictions.

#### Court Leave

Court leave may be used by employees on all days summoned for jury duty, subpoenaed, or otherwise ordered to attend a judicial proceeding. Employees are required to provide a copy of the summons, subpoena, or other judicial order as soon as possible. Court leave is with pay and includes the time actually required by the judicial proceeding and any reasonable time needed to prepare for or recuperate from the ordered duty. Employees are expected to report for work whenever the judicial proceeding schedule permits.

Court leave is not available to employees when they are litigants, defendants, or other principal parties, or have any other personal or familial interest in the proceedings. Employees may, however, request to use accrued annual or personal leave to cover these absences from work.

For further information, please refer to *DBHDD Human Resources Policy* 22-1008: *Court Leave.* 

#### Military Leave

Military leave is a leave of absence from work while engaged in the performance of ordered military duty and while going to and returning from such duty. Military leave may also be used by members of the U.S. Armed Forces, any reserve force or reserve component of the U.S. Armed Forces, or any force of the organized militia to attend service schools, for active duty, active duty for training, inactive duty training, and examination purposes. DBHDD employees who are not employed on a temporary basis are eligible for military leave, either with or without pay.

Please refer to *DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-1009: Military Leave,* for specific information.

#### **Disaster Volunteer Leave**

Employees who are certified disaster service volunteers of the American Red Cross may be eligible for disaster volunteer leave with pay to participate in specialized disaster relief under certain conditions. For specific information, please refer to DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-1013: Miscellaneous Leave/Time.

#### Organ Donation Leave

Employees who donate an organ for transplant will be granted 30 calendar days of leave with pay. For specific information, please refer to DBHDD Human Resources *Policy 22-1013: Miscellaneous Leave/Time.* 

#### **Bone Marrow Donation Leave**

Employees who donate bone marrow for transplant will be granted seven (7) calendar days of leave with pay. For specific information, please refer to *DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-1013: Miscellaneous Leave/Time.* 

#### **Blood Donation Leave**

Employees may be granted time off during work hours (with pay) to donate blood, blood platelets, or granulocytes. For specific information, please refer to *DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-1013: Miscellaneous Time/Leave.* 

#### Voting Time

Employees may be granted leave with pay for up to two hours for voting **only** if the polls are not open two hours before or two hours after scheduled work hours. Employees who do not qualify for voting time with pay may be permitted to take annual or personal leave, compensatory time, or leave without pay for voting purposes. For further information, please refer to *DBHDD Human Resources Policy* 22-1013: *Miscellaneous Time/Leave*.

#### **Retirement Benefits**

The Employees' Retirement System (ERS) administers retirement benefits for State of Georgia employees, as provided by laws enacted through the General Assembly. The ERS is a defined benefit plan and is qualified under the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a). Laws governing ERS provide service retirements, death and disability benefits, group term life insurance, and permit a refund of contributions and interest to members who leave State Government.

Generally, employees who are scheduled to work at least 35 hours per week in positions with duties that are expected to continue for at least nine months are required to be members of the ERS. Employee and employer contributions are paid into the retirement fund for the welfare of members and their beneficiaries. All benefits are paid from the fund.

Employees become vested in the Employees' Retirement System for service retirement after ten years of creditable service.

For further information, please refer to *DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-1902: Retirement*. You may also contact the human resources office, or the Employees' Retirement System.

# III. OTHER AVAILABLE BENEFITS

#### Flexible Benefits Program

The Flexible Benefits Program provides a variety of benefits options. Many benefits can be purchased with pre-tax dollars. Since the cost of many of the flexible benefits is deducted prior to determining taxable pay, income taxes may be reduced.

Once enrolled in the Flexible Benefits Program, employees are given an opportunity to change coverage or change options during the open enrollment period in mid October and November of each year. Changes that are made during this time are effective January 1 of the following year. Employees may be eligible to make changes to coverage at times other than open enrollment for events such as marriage, childbirth, or divorce. Open Enrollment dates are set by the State Personnel Administration and the Department of Community Health.

The following options are offered through the Flexible Benefits Program:

- Health Insurance
- Dental Insurance
- Vision Plan
- Employee and Dependent Life Insurance
- Accidental Death and Dismemberment Insurance
- Short-term and Long-term Disability Insurance
- Legal Insurance
- Long-term Care Insurance
- Spending Accounts

Please see your human resources representative for specific information on available benefits, or refer to *DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-902: Flexible Benefits.* 

#### **Peach State Reserves**

Peach State Reserves (PSR) is a plan offered by the State of Georgia to its employees that provide an opportunity to save for retirement while reducing current taxable income and accumulating tax-deferred savings. PSR offers DBHDD employees a Section 401(K) Plan and a Section 457 Plan.

If you are interested in participating in the Peach State Reserves Program, please contact your human resources representative in the Benefits Section.

#### COBRA

Employees are allowed to continue their health insurance coverage under the State Health Benefit Plan in some cases when coverage would normally be lost. The Federal Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) requires that the Plan offer employees and their qualified dependents healthcare coverage if Plan coverage is lost due to a qualifying event. Examples of a qualifying event include resignation, leave of absence without pay, or reduction in work hours. The length of time coverage may be continued is based on the qualifying event.

Under COBRA, employees or dependents must pay the full cost of coverage at the State's group rate. An administrative fee must also be paid. The State Health Benefit Plan provides employees with written notice describing important information about rights and obligations under COBRA when loss of eligibility is reported.

For more detailed information, please contact your human resources representative in the Benefits Section, or refer to your State Health Benefit Plan material.

#### Georgia WorkAway Program

DBHDD participates in the Georgia WorkAway Program. The WorkAway Program offers alternatives to balance the demands of work and home, including teleworking, alternative and flexible work schedules, and compressed workweeks. For more information on this program, please contact your human resources representative, or refer to DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-111: Teleworking, and Policy 22-1002: Official Hours and Work Schedules.

# **IV. EMPLOYEE RESPONSIBILITIES**

Employees are expected to maintain and exercise the highest moral and ethical standards in carrying out their responsibilities and functions, and to perform their jobs in a professional manner. Employees must conduct themselves in a manner that prevents all forms of impropriety, placement of self-interest above public interest, partiality, prejudice, threats, favoritism, and undue influence.

Employees must be alert in conducting business with employees and non-employees to avoid even the appearance of misconduct, personal or financial gain, or conflict of interest. While performing departmental duties, employees are required to comply with Federal and State laws, the Code of Ethics for Government Service, the Governor's Executive Order (dated January 10, 2011), Rules of the State Personnel Board, and Department policies.

Employees are required to report all suspected violations of Federal or State law involving DBHDD employees or anyone contracted to provide services to DBHDD.

Reports should be made to Incident Management and Investigations section immediately upon the employee becoming aware of the suspected violation.

#### Personal Appearance During Work Hours

While the Department does not specify a department-wide dress code, employees are expected to be clean and neat in appearance during work hours. As representatives of the State, employees should present a business-like professional image. Dress code policies may be established by DBHDD organizational units. In certain types of jobs, employees may be required to wear uniforms.

DBHDD organizational units may designate specific days as "casual days". Dress on casual days may be less formal, but should always be clean, neat, and suitable for the work place.

If lettered or illustrated clothing is worn, it must not promote a particular political, moral, religious, personal, or other opinion. Clothing which is obscene, vulgar, offensive, or inflammatory is prohibited. Employees may be required to change inappropriate dress or instructed not to wear the same or similar clothing in the future. Employees who do not comply with established dress code standards may be subject to disciplinary action, up to and including separation.

#### **Use of State Property**

State property is to be used for work-related reasons only. Employees are not to use, misuse, or permit the use of State property for other than work-related reasons. State property includes, but is not limited to, computers, telephones, fax machines, copiers or other equipment, supplies, vehicles, work areas, and furniture.

The Department reserves the right to conduct reasonable searches on any type of State property including, but not limited to, desks, lockers, work areas, State vehicles, etc. Permission to search must be authorized by Human Resources prior to any search being conducted.

Use of computers, which includes E-mail, Internet and other computer searches and communications, should be professional and for work-related reasons only. The display or transmission of sexually explicit images, messages, or cartoons is prohibited. Other prohibited activity includes ethnic slurs, racial comments, off-color jokes, or anything that may be considered harassment or showing disrespect for others.

Employees are not to use computers for playing games, conducting inappropriate searches, conducting personal business, or performing other employment activities.

Employees are prohibited from making or charging long-distance telephone calls to the Department, unless work-related. The receiving and making of local telephone calls of infrequent, short duration are permitted. These privileges may, however, be withdrawn if abused. Voicemail messages should be professional, business-like, and communicate accurate information. Use of the Internet for non-work related reasons is permitted on a basis similar to that applied to local telephone calls on State telephones, i.e., the use is infrequent, of short duration, and does not interfere with work. This privilege may also be withdrawn if abused.

If approved, employees may have personal items in the work area if suitable and reasonable. These items must not be offensive or inflammatory, or otherwise inconsistent with the Department's work setting. Employees may be required to remove items determined to be inappropriate from work areas at any time.

Employees are responsible for reporting misuse of State property to their supervisors, human resources representatives, or other appropriate officials. Misuse of State property may result in disciplinary action, up to and including separation from employment.

#### **Use of Privileged or Confidential Information**

Many employees are exposed to privileged or confidential information which may be of significant interest to the public. Privileged or confidential information must not be used by employees to gain advantage for themselves, relatives, friends, or acquaintances. Any information including likenesses, names, or other identifying features of individuals served by the department is considered confidential, and must not be disseminated or used casually. Likewise, documents that contain sensitive or confidential information must be disposed of in a manner that maintains the confidentiality of the information.

Privileged or confidential information may only be released by authorized DBHDD officials.

Use of computers to obtain information concerning clients, patients, customers, other employees, or other third parties for non-work-related reason is prohibited.

#### Activities and Relationships with Non-DBHDD Employees

Employees must be alert in conducting business with non-employees to avoid even the appearance of misconduct, personal or financial gain, or conflict of interest.

Employees must report ownership or partial ownership of a company if the company in which the employee is owner or part owner is doing business, or seeks a business relationship with DBHDD.

Employees are prohibited from membership on the Board of Directors of any private or private non-profit agency with which the Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Disabilities has contracts.

Employees are prohibited from accepting personal favors or benefits under circumstances that may influence or give the appearance of influencing their official activities. Such favors and benefits may not be accepted by employees on behalf of other individuals.

Employees are prohibited from involvement in official activities in which a client, patient, or customer is a relative or in-law. Employees are prohibited from involvement in official activities in which an individual served, contractor, or vendor is a personal acquaintance when the relationship creates a conflict or perception of conflict of interest.

Misconduct or abuse in any form involving individuals served is a matter of serious concern and cannot be tolerated. Any knowledge of misconduct or abuse toward any individual served must be reported immediately upon becoming aware of the suspected violation. Failure to report a known instance of abuse constitutes misconduct.

#### **Arrests and Convictions**

Employees are **required** to disclose felony convictions on *Applications for Employment* and convictions and/or pending charges on *State Security Questionnaire/Loyalty Oath* Forms. Employees are also **required** to notify their supervisors, appropriate human resources representative, or other authorized official of any arrests and/or convictions **within five (5) calendar days** of the date of arrest or conviction. A determination of appropriate action will be made on a case-by-case basis.

For detailed information regarding Department standards of conduct and ethics, please contact your human resources representative, or refer to DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-1201: Standards of Conduct and Ethics in Government.

# V. PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT PROCESS

The Performance Management Process establishes a common salary increase eligibility date of *October 1* each year, unless changed by the General Assembly. Generally, the performance review period is *July 1 through June 30* of each year.

#### **Performance Management Plans**

DBHDD employees eligible to be considered for performance-based salary increases are to engage with their supervisors in establishing criteria for evaluation through the ePerformance performance management process for each annual performance review period or when placed in a new position.

Supervisors have the authority to assign job duties and responsibilities; take from, add to, eliminate entirely, or otherwise change the duties and responsibilities of employees; and to direct and control their work. Based on the needs of the Department, the assignment of duties and responsibilities may be temporary or permanent. When significant changes are made during a review period, evaluation criteria should be modified accordingly.

#### Interim Reviews

Evaluating supervisors must meet with employees during the performance review period to conduct an interim review of the employees' work performance as established in the evaluation criteria in the employee's performance plan. Notes of such meetings should be placed in the supervisory file and formally finalized as a part of the ePerformance process.

Classified employees on working test due to promotion or interdepartmental transfer are to be provided an interim/quarterly ePerformance review within ten calendar days of completing half of the working test period, or as near to such date as is practicable including an evaluation of the employees' progress and comments, if any, for corrective action.

#### **Performance Management Evaluations**

Performance Management Evaluations are completed by evaluating supervisors to rate performance and adherence to terms and conditions of employment of employees eligible to be considered for performance-based salary increases. Based on these evaluations, salary increase determinations are made as provided by the Georgia Legislature.

For specific information concerning the Performance Management Process, please contact your supervisor, human resources representative, or refer to DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-701: Performance Management.

# VI. HOURS OF WORK & CLOSURES

#### Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA)

The Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) applies to all employees of the Department unless employees are specifically exempted because of their work assignment. Employees who are subject to the FLSA are considered "non-exempt". The provisions of FLSA include guidance for establishing work periods, payment of minimum wages, hours of work, overtime compensation, and required record keeping.

#### Overtime

Non-exempt employees are not authorized to work more than 40 hours in a work period, unless prior approval is received from supervisors. Emergency situations in which prior approval is not possible will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis.

Whenever possible, non-exempt employees who have met their established work hours in a designated work period should have work hours adjusted during the work period to avoid overtime accrual. Non-exempt employees earn overtime at a rate of time and one-half for time **actually worked** beyond 40 hours in a work period. Overtime will be granted as compensatory time, or in unique situations, employees may receive overtime pay.

Exempt employees are not entitled to overtime for time worked beyond 40 hours in a work period. In unusual circumstances when exempt employees are required to work an extraordinary number of hours, supervisors may grant some time off within a reasonable period of time. Time off for exempt employees should not be on an hour-for-hour basis.

If you have questions about FLSA, please contact your supervisor, human resources representative, or refer to *DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-1001: Fair Labor Standards Act.* 

#### Official Work Hours and Work Schedules

The official work hours of the Department are 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday (except for 24-hour facilities). During this time all offices and facilities should be open for business, unless not possible due to administrative or programmatic needs. All offices and facilities are to be adequately staffed to transact business during those hours necessary and appropriate for their service and administrative functions.

Work schedules may vary depending upon the type of job and work location. Some DBHDD organizational units operate 24 hours a day, seven (7) days a week. In such operations, employees may work various shifts. In other operations, work hours may vary by Units, Sections, Offices, or Divisions.

The work hours of employees must be scheduled based on the needs of the organization. Supervisors have the authority to assign hours of work and arrange the work schedules of employees as necessary to meet the needs of the Department.

Managers may allow employees to work their desired hours if it does not negatively impact the Department or the workload of other employees. Provisions for adequate supervision of employees working modified hours must be made, and written records of such employees' work hours must be maintained.

In order to comply with efforts to improve air quality, supervisors may adjust employees' work schedules to accommodate alternative commute options.

For more information, please refer to *DBHDD Human Resources Policy* 22-1002: Official Hours and Work Schedules.

#### **Office Closures**

There may be times when offices are closed because of severe weather or other temporary emergencies. Generally, the Governor will determine when State offices in the Metro Atlanta area will be closed. The DBHDD Commissioner has the authority to close any DBHDD organizational unit because of severe weather or other temporary emergencies. The authority to close an office outside of the Metro

Atlanta area is delegated by the DBHDD Commissioner to Division/Office Directors, who may delegate the same authority to other appropriate staff.

For further information, please refer to *DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-108: Office Closures.* 

# VII. SAFETY & WORK-RELATED INJURY, ILLNESS OR EXPOSURE TO OCCUPATIONAL DISEASES

#### **Observing Safety Regulations**

Safety is a shared responsibility between employees and supervisors. It is important for employees to be "safety conscious" and take precautions to avoid injury, illness, and exposure to occupational diseases while performing official duties. Employees are to follow all safety rules and regulations applicable to an assignment, and are to bring potentially unsafe or unhealthful working conditions and/or potential exposure to hazardous chemicals to the attention of supervisors for review and appropriate action.

#### Workers' Compensation

Employees incurring work-related injuries, illnesses, or exposures to occupational diseases are eligible for Workers' Compensation benefits. Employees pay no premium for this coverage.

All work-related injuries, illnesses, and exposures to occupational diseases should be immediately reported to the supervisor. If an incident is not reported within 30 calendar days, Workers' Compensation coverage may be jeopardized.

Supervisors are required to immediately report all work-related injuries, illnesses, and exposures to occupational diseases that require medical treatment or result in time lost from work in accordance with the provisions of *DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-1701: Workers' Compensation and Special Injury Return-to-Work Program.* 

In emergency situations, medical treatment should be sought from the nearest health care facility. In all other situations, employees should report their injury to their supervisor and contact **Department of Administrative Services Workers Comp at 1-877-656-7475** to report a worker's compensation claim.

If a claim is approved by the Workers' Compensation Program, medical expenses for the work-related injury, illness, or exposure to occupational diseases are covered. These include hospital bills, prescribed drugs, ambulance, physicians', and other medical expenses.

If a work-related injury, illness, or exposure to occupational diseases causes lost work time, employees have the option of using accrued leave **or** receiving Workers' Compensation benefits for the loss of wages. Workers' Compensation wage loss

benefits begin after seven (7) calendar days of disability. Employees cannot receive Workers' Compensation wage loss benefits at the same time as receiving salary by using accrued leave.

Employees must complete the *Selection of Payment Option* Form to choose either use of accrued leave or placement on leave without pay in order to receive Workers' Compensation wage loss benefits during the period of disability. This form is available on the DBHDD website. <u>http://gadbhdd.policystat.com</u>

When work-related injuries, illnesses, or exposures to occupational diseases occur, employees will be returned to work whenever feasible, as quickly and safely as possible. Supervisors are expected to alert their human resources office immediately of any return to work restriction, accommodation, or job modification requests.

Additional information may be obtained from the State Board of Workers' Compensation at <u>http://sbwc.georgia.gov/portal/site/SBWC</u>.

#### Special Injury

Eligible employees who are physically disabled as a result of a physical injury which occurred in the line of duty, and was caused by a willful act of violence committed by someone other than a fellow employee, are entitled to a leave of absence with regular salary for the period of time that they are physically unable to perform their job duties. Special injury benefits are provided for up to a maximum of 180 workdays for injuries resulting from a single incident.

For detailed information, please refer to DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-1701: Workers' Compensation and Special Injury Return-to-Work Program, and Policy 22-1702: Leave and Payment for Workers' Compensation and Special Injury Claims, or contact your supervisor or human resources representative.

# **VIII. OUTSIDE ACTIVITIES**

In general, the Department is not concerned as an employer with the non-work time of employees. Off-duty conduct becomes a legitimate concern, however, when it affects departmental operations or reflects negatively on State Government. Such off-duty conduct may result in appropriate disciplinary action being taken.

#### Other Employment

In addition to their DBHDD jobs, employees may have other employment if it:

- 1. Does not violate any Federal or State law, Rules of the State Personnel Board, or DBHDD policy;
- 2. Does not create a conflict of interest with Departmental employment; and

3. Does not interfere or conflict with their ability to effectively perform assigned duties and responsibilities with the Department. In this regard, employees' jobs with DBHDD must be considered primary.

Prior to beginning other employment, employees must submit a *Request for Approval of Other Employment* Form to their immediate supervisors.

For specific information regarding other employment, please see your supervisor or human resources representative, or refer to *DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-1203: Other Employment.* 

#### **Political Activity**

DBHDD employees are protected from undue political pressure, influence, or coercion by Federal and State laws, as well as Department policy. These same laws and policy limit political activity while assuring that the right to participate in the political process is preserved.

For information on political activity that is allowed, as well as political activity that is not allowed, please refer to *DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-1202: Political Activity*.

Questions concerning political activity should be directed to your human resources representative.

# IX. ALCOHOL AND DRUG and WORKPLACE VIOLENCE POLICIES

#### Drug-Free Workplace

In accordance with Federal and State laws, the Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Disabilities is committed to providing a drug-free workplace. Employees are prohibited from illegally engaging in the manufacture, distribution, dispensing, possession, or use of illegal drugs **at any time or place including the workplace.** 

As part of the terms and conditions of employment, employees are to be free of illegal drugs while at work or on duty. Also, employees are not to report for work while impaired by over-the-counter drugs. Since it is against the law to take drugs prescribed for someone else, employees should not use someone else's prescription drugs. Employees may be required to submit to drug testing.

Employees who do not comply with the above are subject to disciplinary action, up to and including separation, and future employment by the Department may be denied.

#### **Alcohol-Free Workplace**

As part of the terms and conditions of employment, employees are to be free of alcohol while at work or on duty. Employees may be required to submit to alcohol testing. Employees who do not comply with the above are subject to disciplinary action, up to and including separation, and future employment by the Department may be denied.

For specific information on alcohol and drug testing programs, please refer to DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-1301: Drug-Free Workplace, and Policy 22-1302: Alcohol/Drug Testing Programs.

#### Preventing and Reporting Workplace Violence

DBHDD is concerned about the health and safety of all individuals. DBHDD employees, supervisors, and managers are to use safe work practices; follow policies, procedures, and directives; and assist in maintaining a safe and secure work environment. Violence and threats of violence are prohibited.

DBHDD will not tolerate acts or threatened acts of violence in the workplace, while on duty or while off duty, when the act is directed toward a work related contact, or otherwise bears a relationship to work. Employees are prohibited from the use of threatening, abusive, or intimidating language or written material; fighting or other acts of violence; and possession of weapons on the work premises unless specifically authorized due to the nature of work performed. The department reserves the right to conduct reasonable searches. Employees are to report any instance of violence to their immediate supervisor <u>and</u> human resources office.

For specific information on preventing and reporting workplace violence, please refer to DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-110: Preventing Workplace Violence.

# X. CONFLICT RESOLUTION

Employees are encouraged to bring work-related concerns to their supervisors for review and potential resolution. Supervisors should communicate directly with employees and be open to review of concerns. Questions concerning any aspect of conflict resolution should be directed to your supervisor, human resources representative, or human resources manager at your location.

#### **Third Party Involvement in Employment Matters**

Supervisors will maintain contact and relations with DBHDD employees on an individual and direct basis rather than through third party individuals, representatives, or organizations.

There will be no recognition, expressed or implied, of any third party involvement in any matter pertaining to management of staff. Third parties include, but are not limited to, employees' relatives, friends, acquaintances, representatives of professional associations, those who are not considered in a "need to know" status, and attorneys.

Supervisors will not meet, confer, negotiate, or engage in discussions with any third party individual, representative, or organization regarding Departmental employment matters except as outlined in DBHDD policy. For further information, please refer to DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-107: Third Party Involvement in Employment Issues.

#### **Grievance Procedures**

Internal Departmental grievance procedures have been established to review allegations of unfavorable employment decisions and conditions that are not considered unlawful discrimination or sexual harassment. There are separate grievance procedures for eligible classified and unclassified employees.

There are specific deadlines by which a grievance must be filed. Attempts at informal resolution do not extend the filing deadlines.

Please refer to the *DBHDD Human Resources Policy* 22-1501: *Grievance Procedure for Classified Employees,* and *Policy* 22-1502: *Grievance Procedure for Unclassified Employees,* for specific information.

#### **Unlawful Discrimination Complaint Procedure**

Complaints alleging unlawful discrimination on the basis of race, color, sex, national origin, disability, age, genetic information, or religious or political opinions or affiliations, and allegations of sexual harassment may be filed with the human resources office at your location for investigation. There are specific deadlines by which a complaint must be filed.

Filing a complaint through this procedure does not prevent otherwise eligible employees from filing with the State Commission on Equal Opportunity or other appropriate Federal agency.

Employees who believe that they have been subjected to sexual harassment should immediately report the incident to an appropriate supervisor and the human resources manager.

For specific information, please refer to *DBHDD* Human Resources Policy 22-102: Sexual Harassment, and Policy 22-150: Unlawful Discrimination Complaint Procedure.

#### **Review of Written Reprimands**

Eligible **classified** employees who are issued written reprimands may file a written request for review with the local human resources office. There are specific deadlines by which a request for review must be filed.

For more information, please refer to *DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-1504: Process for Review of Written Reprimands.* 

# XI. DISCIPLINARY ACTION

Disciplinary action may be appropriate due to employees' inappropriate behavior and/or unsatisfactory work performance. When disciplinary action (except for separation) is taken, employees should be given sufficient information to enable them to correct the inappropriate behavior and/or unsatisfactory performance.

For complete information, please refer to DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-1601: Disciplinary/Dismissal Actions–Classified Employees, and Policy 22-1602: Disciplinary/Separation Actions–Unclassified Employees.

## XII. ENDING EMPLOYMENT

#### Resignation

Employees who resign should provide advance written notice. Generally, a twoweek notice is recommended, unless a shorter period is acceptable to the supervisor. The date of resignation becomes fixed upon receiving notice, and can only be changed with the approval of the supervisor.

#### Retirement

Employees who have selected a retirement date and have received confirmation from the Employees' Retirement System should advise their supervisors of the retirement date as soon as possible. Supervisors should be given a minimum of thirty (30)-calendar days advance notice.

#### Staff Reduction

Employees may be separated from employment through a staff reduction as a result of shortage of work or funds, change in organization, or other administrative or budgetary changes.

If classified employees will be affected by staff reduction, specific procedures must be followed to implement a Reduction in Force (RIF), as set forth in State Personnel Board Rules. If unclassified employees will be affected by staff reduction, their knowledge, skills, abilities, performance, and length of service should be reviewed to determine which employees will be retained. Any plan for Reduction in Force must be developed in conjunction with the DBHDD Human Resources Director or designee.

#### **Unemployment Compensation**

All employees who are separated from employment for any reason should receive a Georgia Department of Labor *Separation Notice* Form and may file for unemployment compensation benefits. Upon application for unemployment compensation benefits, a determination of eligibility will be made by the Georgia Department of Labor.

# XIII. GENERAL INFORMATION

#### Identification Badges

DBHDD organizations may require employees to wear identification badges issued by the Department while at work or on duty. Employees are not to wear these identification badges while away from the work place during off-duty hours.

#### Smoking Policy

DBHDD is committed to providing an environment for employees and individuals served that promotes healthy living. Thus, smoking is prohibited in all DBHDD facilities and vehicles. It is the policy of DBHDD to provide a tobacco-free and smoke-free environment in all DBHDD facilities. Tobacco use and smoking are therefore prohibited in and on the grounds of facilities owned, occupied, or operated by DBHDD, and in all vehicles owned or assigned to DBHDD.

Smoking is also prohibited in employees' personal vehicles while on the grounds of DBHDD facilities and during work times, and when clients, patients, or customers are being transported. Tobacco users can call 1-877-270-7867 for free smoking cessation counseling, support, and referrals.

#### Travel

DBHDD employees may be required to travel in order to perform official duties. State law and Departmental regulations allow employees to be reimbursed for reasonable and necessary expenses incurred while traveling in the performance of such duties. Please see your supervisor for a copy of the current travel regulations.

#### Credit Unions

Credit unions are cooperative financial institutions. Several Credit Unions are affiliated with payroll services serving DBHDD employees including the Human Services Credit Union (<u>www.hsecu,org</u>). Credit unions are not-for-profit financial institutions that are owned and controlled by the members, and which operate to provide credit at reasonable rates, and to provide other financial services such as, direct deposit to checking and savings accounts, auto loans, mortgages, and credit card services to their members.

For a list of Credit Unions affiliated with DBHDD payroll services, contact DBHDD Financial Services - Payroll.

#### Employees' Suggestion and Awards Program

The Employees' Suggestion and Awards Program encourages employees to make suggestions for improving state government, promoting efficiency, and reducing cost. Suggestions that meet the Program requirements, and are accepted and implemented, may become eligible for monetary awards. Suggestions should be submitted in writing to the Suggestion Program Coordinator at the Georgia State Merit System.

For more information and to submit suggestions, visit the State Personnel Administration (SPA) website: <u>http://www.spa.ga.gov</u>. You may also refer to DBHDD Human *Resources Policy 22-1802: Employees' Suggestion Program.* 

#### Charitable Contributions Program

The Charitable Contributions Program is an annual statewide program that gives State employees the opportunity to support eligible charitable organizations through their workplace. Employees may choose to contribute through a voluntary monthly payroll deduction, or may choose to make a one-time contribution. Other employee fundraising for personal or charitable purposes is prohibited.

For additional information, please contact your human resources office or refer to DBHDD Human Resources Policy 22-1801: Charitable Contributions Program.

\*\*\*\*\*

We hope that the information in this HANDBOOK is useful to you. If you have questions not answered in the HANDBOOK, you should:

- ✓ Contact your supervisor;
- ✓ Contact the human resources office at your location;
- ✓ Refer to DBHDD Human Resources Policies at <u>http://gadbhdd.policystat.com</u>

This HANDBOOK is <u>**not**</u> a contract of employment or a legal document, and is not to be interpreted as such. The Department has the right to change information in this HANDBOOK at any time or for any reason without prior notice.

Please remember to sign and date the EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM at the back of this HANDBOOK and turn it in to your supervisor or orientation coordinator.

# INDEX

.....

| 401(K) Plan | See Peach State Reserves |
|-------------|--------------------------|
| 457 Plan    | See Peach State Reserves |

#### Α

| Activities and Relationships with Non-DBHDD Employees |  |
|---|--|
| Alcohol and Drug Policies                             |  |
| Alcohol Testing                                       |  |
| Alcohol-Free Workplace                                |  |
| Alternative Work Schedules                            |  |
| Annual Leave  |  |
| Annual Performance Review Period                      |  |
| Appearance During Work Hours                          |  |
| Application for Employment Form                       |  |
| Arrests and Convictions                               |  |
| Authorized Leave of Absence Without Pay               |  |
|   |  |

# Badges, Identification 30 Benefits Continuation (Cobra) 16 Benefits, Other 15 Benfits, Employee 9 Blood Donation Leave 14 Bone Marrow Donation Leave 14

В

#### С

| Casual Days                                     | See Personal Appearance       |
|---|-------------------------------|
| Certificate, License, Registration or Insurance |                               |
| Charitable Contributions Program                |                               |
| Classified Employees                            |                               |
| Closing of Offices, Severe Weather              |                               |
| COBRA   |                               |
| Coercion  |                               |
| Collusion                                       |                               |
| Compensation                                    |                               |
| Compensatory Time                               |                               |
| Complaints Alleging Sexual Harassment           |                               |
| Complaints Alleging Unlawful Discrimination     |                               |
| Compressed Workweeks                            |                               |
| Computers                                       |                               |
| Confidential Information, Use of                |                               |
| Conflict of Interest                            | See Employee Responsibilities |
| Conflict Resolution                             |                               |
| Convictions and Arrests                         |                               |
| Court Leave                                     |                               |
| Credit Unions                                   |                               |
| Criminal History Record Information             |                               |

# Debit Card. 10 Deductions from Pay. 10 Deferred Compensation See Peach State Reserves Direct Deposit 10

D

| Disability Retirement                                  | 14  |
|--|-----|
| Disaster Volunteer Leave                               |     |
| Disciplinary Action                                    | 29  |
| Disciplinary/Dismissal Actions-Classified Employees    |     |
| Disciplinary/Separation Actions-Unclassified Employees | 29  |
| Discrimination   | ent |
| Discrimination Complaint Procedure                     | 28  |
| Dress Code   | ice |
| Drug Testing   | 26  |
| Drug-Free Workplace                                    | 25  |

.

#### Ε

| E-mail  | See Use of State Property |
|---|---------------------------|
| Employee Benefits                             |                           |
| Employee Responsibilities                     |                           |
| Employees' Retirement System (ERS)            |                           |
| Employees' Suggestion and Awards Program      |                           |
| Employment Eligibility                        |                           |
| Employment Eligibility Verification           |                           |
| Employment in State Government                |                           |
| Employment of Relatives                       |                           |
| Employment-At-Will                            |                           |
| Ending Employment                             |                           |
| ePerformance Management Process               |                           |
| Evaluations, Performance                      |                           |
| eVerify Process                               |                           |
| Exempt Employees                              |                           |
| Exempt Employees<br>Expenses, Business Travel |                           |
| Exposure to Occupational Diseases             |                           |

#### F

| Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA)  | . 21                 |
|--|----------------------|
| Falsification of Criminal History  |                      |
| Family and Medical Leave   |                      |
| Felony Convictions   | . 19                 |
|  |                      |
| Flexible Work Schedules  |                      |
| Fraud  | 9                    |
| Felony Convictions<br>Flexible Benefits Program<br>Flexible Work Schedules | . 19<br>. 15<br>. 16 |

#### G

| Georgia State Merit System  | 31 |
|-----------------------------|----|
| Grievance Procedures        |    |
| Group Term Life Insurance   |    |
| 0.00p 1000 2.00 1.000 0.000 |    |

#### Н

| Harassment                  |   |
|-----------------------------|---|
| Harassment, Sexual          | See Unlawful Discrimination Complaint Procedure |
| Health Insurance            |   |
| Holidays                    |   |
| Human Services Credit Union |   |

#### I

| I-9 Form                               | 7 |
|--|---|
| Identification Badges                  |   |
| Illegal Drugs, Use or Possession of    |   |
| Incident Management and Investigations |   |
|  |   |

H......

| Inclement Weather - Office Closings                                   |                          |
|---|--------------------------|
| Information Disclosure  |                          |
| Injury/Illness/Exposures to Occupational Diseases                     |                          |
| Insurance Programs<br>Insurance, License, Certificate or Registration |                          |
| Interim Reviews   |                          |
| Internet  |                          |
| Involvement in Official Activities                                    |                          |
|   |                          |
| K   |                          |
| К   |                          |
| Kidney Donation Leave   | See Organ Donation Leave |
| Kindley Donation Leave  |                          |
|   |                          |
| L   |                          |
| Language, Threatening or Abusive                                      | 27                       |
| Leave Donation  |                          |
| Leave Of Absence Without Pay, Authorized                              |                          |
| License, Certificate, Registration or Insurance                       |                          |
| Listing of Job Opportunities.   |                          |
|   |                          |
| М   |                          |
| IVI   |                          |
| Medical and Physical Examination Program                              |                          |
| Medical Leave   |                          |
| Military Leave  |                          |
| Misrepresentation of Criminal History                                 |                          |
| Monetary Awards   |                          |
|   |                          |
| Ν   |                          |
| IN IN   |                          |
| Non-Exempt Employees  |                          |
| Non-Smoking Areas   |                          |
|   |                          |
| 0   |                          |
| •   |                          |
| Off-Duty Conduct  |                          |
| Office Closures   |                          |
| Official Work Hours and Work Schedules                                |                          |
| Open Enrollment Period  |                          |
| Organ Donation Leave  |                          |
| Orientation   |                          |
| Other Employment  |                          |
| Outside Activities  |                          |
| Overtime  |                          |
| Ownership/Partial Ownership of a Company                              |                          |
|   |                          |
| Р   |                          |
|   | 0                        |
| Pay Checks  |                          |
| Pay Periods<br>Payroll Deductions                                     |                          |
| Payroll Deductions<br>Peach State Reserves                            |                          |
| Performance Management Evaluations                                    |                          |
| Performance Management Interim Reviews                                |                          |
| Performance Management Plans  |                          |
| Performance Management Process  |                          |
| Performance Review Period.  |                          |
| Performance-Based Salary Increases                                    |                          |
| Personal Appearance During Work Hours                                 |                          |

.

| Personal Favors or Benefits        |                           |
|------------------------------------|---------------------------|
| Personal Items                     | See Use of State Property |
| Personal Leave                     |                           |
| Physical Examination               | 7                         |
| Political Activity                 |                           |
| Possession or Use of Illegal Drugs |                           |
| Prescription Drugs                 |                           |
| Preventing Workplace Violence      |                           |
| Privileged Information, Use of     |                           |
| Promotion                          |                           |
| Property, Use of State             |                           |

#### R

| Reduction in Force (RIF)                          |  |
|---|--|
| Registration, License, Certificate or Insurance   |  |
| Regular (Authorized) Leave of Absence Without Pay |  |
| Reimbursement, Travel                             |  |
| Relationships with Non-DBHDD Employees            |  |
| Relatives, Employment of                          |  |
| Reporting Workplace Violence                      |  |
| Reprimands, Process for Review                    |  |
| Request for Approval of Other Employment Form     |  |
| Reserve Duty                                      |  |
| Resignation                                       |  |
| Retirement  |  |
| Retirement Benefits                               |  |

#### S

| Safety Regulations                             |                            |
|--|----------------------------|
| Safety Regulations                             | See Use of State Property  |
| Selection of Payment Option Form               |                            |
| Selective Service Registration                 |                            |
| Separation Notice Form                         |                            |
| Separation of Unclassified Employees           |                            |
| Sexual Harassment                              |                            |
| Sick Leave                                     |                            |
| Smoking Policy                                 |                            |
| Special Injury                                 |                            |
| Spending Accounts                              |                            |
| Spending Accounts<br>Staff Reduction           |                            |
| State Board of Workers' Compensation           |                            |
| State Health Benefit Plan                      |                            |
| State Security Questionnaire/Loyalty Oath Form | See Information Disclosure |
| Suggestion and Awards Program                  | -                          |

Т

| Team Georgia Website                          | See Holidavs              |
|---|---------------------------|
| Telephones                                    | See Use of State Property |
| Teleworking                                   |                           |
| Third Party Involvement in Employment Matters |                           |
| Transfer                                      |                           |
| Transporting of Clients or Patients           |                           |
| Travel  |                           |

#### U

| Unclassified Employees    |  |
|---------------------------|--|
| Unemployment Compensation |  |

H......

| Uniforms                                      | See Personal Appearance |
|---|-------------------------|
| Unlawful Discrimination Complaint Procedure   |                         |
| Use of Privileged or Confidential Information |                         |
| Use of State Property                         |                         |
| Use or Possession of Illegal Drugs            |                         |
| ese of rossession of megar brugs              |                         |

.

#### V

| Verifying Identity |  |
|--------------------|--|
| Violence, Acts of  |  |
| Voicemail          |  |
| Voting Time        |  |

#### W

| Work Hours                        |  |
|-----------------------------------|--|
| Work Restriction                  |  |
| Work Schedules                    |  |
| WorkAway Program                  |  |
| Workers' Compensation Benefits    |  |
| Workplace Violence Policies       |  |
| Work-Related Injury               |  |
| Written Reprimands Review Process |  |

H......

# EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM

The *EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK* has important information about DBHDD employment. My signature below acknowledges that I have received the *HANDBOOK*, and that I understand it is my responsibility to read and comply with the guidelines described in it. I understand that if I have any questions not answered in the *HANDBOOK*, I should

- contact my supervisor;
- contact my human resources representative;
- refer to the on-line DBHDD Human Resources Policy Manual

I UNDERSTAND THAT THIS HANDBOOK IS NOT A CONTRACT OF EMPLOYMENT OR A LEGAL DOCUMENT, AND IS NOT TO BE INTERPRETED AS SUCH. The Department has the right to change information in this HANDBOOK at any time or for any reason without prior notice.

Please complete below:

EMPLOYEE'S NAME (please print)

EMPLOYEE'S SIGNATURE

WORK LOCATION & ADDRESS

DATE

This copy should be retained with the HANDBOOK for future reference.

# EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT FORM

The *EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK* has important information about DBHDD employment. My signature below acknowledges that I have received the HANDBOOK, and that I understand it is my responsibility to read and comply with the guidelines described in it. I understand that if I have questions not answered in the *HANDBOOK*, I should

- contact my supervisor;
- contact my human resources representative;
- refer to the on-line DBHDD Human Resources Policy Manual

I UNDERSTAND THAT THIS HANDBOOK IS NOT A CONTRACT OF EMPLOYMENT OR A LEGAL DOCUMENT, AND IS NOT TO BE INTERPRETED AS SUCH. The Department has the right to change information in this HANDBOOK at any time or for any reason without prior notice.

Please complete below.

EMPLOYEE'S NAME (please print)

EMPLOYEE'S SIGNATURE

WORK LOCATION & ADDRESS

DATE

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Supervisors: Please place a copy of this signed form in your supervisory file and forward the original to the employee's personnel file.



Georgia Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental Disabilities

# ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF HUMAN RESOURCES POLICIES

My signature below acknowledges that I, \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_ [printed name] have been advised of the location and availability of the DBHDD Employee Handbook and Human Resources Policy Manual. I understand that it is my responsibility to be aware of the content of DBHDD Human Resources policies, including, <u>but not limited</u> <u>to</u>, the Standards of Conduct and Ethics in Government, Smoking, Unlawful Discrimination, Sexual Harassment, Use of State Property, and the Drug Free Workplace policies.

I further acknowledge that I am aware of the availability of supervisory and Human Resources support in accessing or answering questions related to these policies. I understand that the HR policies and Employee Handbook are on the DBHDD website and are available for review at: http://gadbhdd.policystat.com

| Signature:         |      |
|--------------------|------|
| Date:              | <br> |
| Work Unit:         | <br> |
| Supervisor's Name: |      |

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Submit this completed form to your Human Resources office.